                                                   CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                                     27423

: OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS:

: OF THE CITY OF PEORIA, ILLINOIS :

Council Chambers, Peoria, Illinois, March 28, 2006, a City Council Meeting was held this date at 6:20 P.M., at City Hall, Council Chambers, 419 Fulton Street, Mayor Jim Ardis presiding.

 Meeting

ROLL CALL

Roll call showed the following Council Members present: Grayeb, Gulley (arrived at 6:25 P.M.), Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;  Absent: None.     
INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Ardis requested a moment of silent prayer or silent reflection, and then he led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

PROCLAMATIONS, COMMENDATIONS, ETC.

PROCLAMATION:
ILLINOIS CENTRAL COLLEGE GIRLS BASKETBALL TEAM: NATIONAL 
JUNIOR COLLEGE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION DIVISION II TOURNAMENT CHAMPIONS
PROCLAMATION: 
RICHWOODS HIGH SCHOOL BOYS BASKETALL TEAM: ILLINOIS 



HIGH SCHOOL ASSOCIATION CLASS AA TOURNAMENT - SECOND 



PLACE
PROCLAMATION: 
PROJECT NEXT GENERATION

MINUTES

Council Member Nichting moved to approve the minutes of the Regular City Council Minutes held on March 21, 2006, as printed; seconded by Council Member Turner.
Approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;

Nays:
None.
WELCOME OF LOCAL DIGNITARIES
Mayor Ardis welcomed former City Council Member and current Judge Steve Kouri, City Assessor Bonnie Gavin, City Treasurer Reginald Willis, and District #150 School Board President Alicia Butler.

PETITIONS, REMONSTRANCES & COMMUNICATIONS – CITY OF PEORIA
REQUEST TO MOVE AGENDA ITEM

(06-161)
Communication from the City Manager and Corporation Counsel Requesting Adoption of an ORDINANCE Amending CHAPTER 15 of the Code of the City of Peoria Relating to NOISE and IMPOUNDMENT OF VEHICLES.
27424                               CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                              MARCH 28, 2006

Council Member Van Auken moved to move Item No. 6 forward on the Agenda and she further moved to defer the proposed Ordinance amending Chapter 15 of the Code of the City of Peoria relating to noise and impoundment of vehicles for two weeks until the April 11, 2006, Regular City Council Meeting; seconded by Council Member Nichting.
In discussion with Council Member Sandberg regarding the deferral, Council Member Van Auken explained she wanted extra time to review exemptions of motorcycles from the proposed Ordinance, and she said she felt there were Ordinances from other cities throughout the State and Nation that needed to be reviewed.  She said she would also like to have more data on the current enforcement situation.   

Motion to move this item forward on the Council Agenda and defer the proposed Ordinance amending Chapter 15 of the Code of the City of Peoria relating to noise and impoundment of vehicles until the April 11, 2006, Regular City Council Meeting was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, 
Mayor Ardis – 9;

Nays:
Grayeb, Gulley - 2.
(06-162)
PRESENTATION by CITY HEALTH CARE CONSULTANTS GALLAGHER BENEFIT SERVICES Regarding an ACTUARIAL ANALYSIS for the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB45) Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Providing the REQUIRED CALCULATION of CURRENT and FUTURE COSTS for the CITY'S MEDICAL, PRESCRIPTION DRUG, and DENTAL PROGRAMS.
Director of Human Resources Pat Parsons introduced Mr. Marty Lyons, Area Vice President of Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc., and Mr. Glen Volk, Vice President and Consulting Actuary of Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.
Hearing no objections, Mayor Ardis granted Privilege of the Floor to Mr. Marty Lyons and Mr. Glen Volk.

Mr. Marty Lyons, Area Vice President of Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc., provided an overview of GASB 43 and GASB 45 – OPEB.  He discussed current retiree expenses and future retiree expenses.  
Mr. Glen Volk, Vice President and consulting Actuary of Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.  provided information regarding the Annual Required Contributions Projection, which reflected that the City’s contribution would need to be $7,828,217 for a funded plan and $10,744,341 for an unfunded plan.  He also explained the Actuarial Accumulated Liability Project by Benefit and he said the City’s subsidy for an unfunded plan would be $127,613,272, and $81,179,629 for a funded plan.
Mr. Lyons discussed some suggestions as to how the Council could handle this situation in general.  He urged the Labor Management Health Care Committee to review the Plan design, review contractual requirements, and make recommendations to the Council for changes in the plan design, coverage, and/or contribution allocations.  He urged the Council to review explicit subsidies, consider recommendations made by the Labor Management Health Care Committee, and develop a funding policy and a long-term strategy.  He stated there would be a 30-year amortization period.  He said he would not suggest changing anything for 2007, but steps needed to be taken to address this situation in the least disruptive format.  He said there would be no implicit subsidies if health care was eliminated for all active and retired employees.  He said, under Illinois Statute, if an employer provided a plan for active employees, the employer also had to provide a plan for inactive employees also.  
MARCH 28, 2006                        CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                                     27425

Mr. Lyons suggested one way to address this issue would be to begin converting a defined benefit to  a defined contribution.  He said he felt that many plan designs would be available for review over the next year.  He said there would be other issues that would not be under the Council’s control, such as how the Medicare D subsidies would be handled and whether or not it could be used to reduce the liability.  He said there would be changes in the process as details were defined.  
Mayor Ardis said there had been a great deal of discussion regarding this issue, and he said this was a preliminary review of the process for better understanding for the Council and citizens.  He said there would be more discussion in the near future, so he questioned what response would be needed from the Council at this meeting.

City Manager Randy Oliver said he wanted the Mayor and Council to be aware that the GASB 45 issue would be a part of the 2007 Budget discussions and the Council needed to be aware that they would have to address the liability of an amount somewhere between $4.7 million and $7.6 million to comply with GASB 45.  He said this would include the offset of approximately $3.1 million currently paid for retiree benefits.  He said if this issue was not dealt with, the amount would be taken out of Fund Balance by the auditor when the 2007 statements were completed, or if the City declined to have it taken out of Fund Balance and declined to comply with GASB 45, it would result in a qualified Financial Statement, rather than the desired unqualified Financial Statement. 

So that the Council could obtain as much information as possible and to get their individual questions answered, Council Member Turner suggested that Council Members meet with Mr. Lyons three at a time to discuss this issue in the coming weeks because this matter would impact many of the decisions the Council would be making in the future.

City Manager Oliver said he would make those arrangements if meetings were needed to gather more information.  He added that the number he provided to Council assumed there would be no changes in the Health Care plan design.

In discussion with Council Member Sandberg, Mr. Lyons explained for clarity that GASB 45 did not have a provision for the City to fund it, which he felt was a deficiency because communities in the State of Illinois were required to have a balanced budget. He said for the City to obtain an unqualified opinion from the auditor, the annual required contribution (ARC) would have to appear on the books. He said the City’s choice was to either fund the ARC and meet the liability to have a balanced budget, or the ARC would not be funded initially and the City’s total net assets would begin to decline.  He said the City had a large amount of assets, but ARC would be a large liability also.  He said this would be similar to depreciation expenses, which appeared on the books, but no real money changed hands.  He said GASB 45 did not require the City to fund the ARC; but considering the practices that the City had in place, he felt the City would want to fund the ARC.

In discussion with Council Member Morris, City Manager Oliver said he would need some direction regarding the term “balanced budget” to totally address this issue.  He said it was his belief there would be a negative impact on the City by the rating agencies, if the City did not have a plan or methodology to fund the ARC.  

In discussion with Council Member Nichting, Mr. Lyons explained that GASB 45 would be implemented over a three-year plan according to population.  He said the year of implementation for the City of Peoria would be in year one of the plan, which would be 2007.
Council Member Spears pointed out that the City would be increasingly placing more and more money every year into the ARC fund, but he questioned at what point the money could be used by the City.

27426                               CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                              MARCH 28, 2006

Mr. Lyons agreed that each year the amount of the annual required contribution would increase.  He said the fund would begin to go down only if the plan was terminated.  He said the funds would be used but funding would be increasing each year, similar to a pension plan.  
City Manager Oliver said, if an entity went out of business, the intent of GASB 45 would be to guarantee there would be sufficient funds available to payout any and all accrued liabilities.
In further discussion with Council Member Spears regarding borrowing opportunities, Mr. Lyons explained the funding would be held in a trust and the City would not be able to borrow against the fund similar to a pension plan.
Council Member Spears said he felt the actuarial discovery created the worse case scenario, and he felt it would not be as harsh as recommended.  He said he felt the system would be revised between now and next year.  

Council Member Manning suggested that the Human Resources Department and the Labor Manager Health Care Committee needed to begin making recommendations to the Council regarding options for health care issues.  He said the solutions should be long-term because these kinds of changes could not happen quickly.  He said he felt that all entities should begin sharing the burden.  
City Manager Oliver said he had already requested that the Human Resources Department and the Labor Management Healthcare Committee work with the consultants and bring recommendations to the Council by the end of April.

Council Member Grayeb moved to receive and file the presentation by City Health Care Consultants Gallagher Benefit Services regarding an actuarial analysis for the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB45) Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) providing the required calculation of current and future costs for the City’s medical, prescription drug, and dental programs; seconded by Council Member Van Auken.
Approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;

Nays:
None.
CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS BY OMNIBUS VOTE, for the City of Peoria, with Recommendations as Outlined:

(06-163)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Public Works Requesting Approval for the SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE of a 2006 CATERPILLAR SKID STEER LOADER, in the Amount of $30,900.00, Equipped with a NEW PLANER, in the Amount of $18,000.00, for a Total Amount of $48,900.00, for the PUBLIC SERVICES STREET DIVISION.
(06-164)
Communication from the City Manager and Finance Director/Comptroller Requesting Adoption of ORDINANCE NO. 15,904 Abating the TAX Heretofore LEVIED to PAY SPECIAL SERVICE AREA TAXES on the RIVERWEST NEIGHBORHOOD (Formerly the Colonel John Warner Homes Development).
MARCH 28, 2006                        CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                                     27427

(06-165)
Communication from the City Manager and Corporation Counsel
 *
Requesting Adoption of an ORDINANCE Amending CHAPTER 20 of the Code of the City of Peoria Relating to IMPOUNDMENT OF VEHICLES for Violations of Fleeing or Attempting to Elude a Police Officer and Leaving the Scene of a Personal Injury or Property Damage Accident.
(06-166)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Planning and Growth Management Requesting Adoption of ORDINANCE NO. 15,905 Approving the FINAL PLAN for KAISER WILLOW KNOLLS APARTMENTS, a Multi-Family Residential Development Located WEST of ALLEN ROAD, EAST of ROCKVALE DRIVE, Along the SOUTH SIDE of WILLOW KNOLLS ROAD.
(06-167)
REPORT of CITY TREASURER REGINALD A. WILLIS for the Period JANUARY 1, 2005, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2005, with Recommendation to Receive and File.
Mayor Ardis questioned if the Council wanted any of the Consent Agenda items removed for further discussion.

Council Member Sandberg requested that Item No. 06-165 be removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion.

Council Member Nichting moved to approve the Consent Agenda items as outlined in the Council Communications; seconded by Council Member Manning.
Item Nos. 06-163 through 06-167 (excluding Item No. 06-165 which was removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion) were approved by roll call vote under the Omnibus Vote Designation.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;

Nays:
None.

(06-165)
Communication from the City Manager and Corporation Counsel
 *
 Requesting Adoption of an ORDINANCE Amending CHAPTER 20 of the Code of the City of Peoria Relating to IMPOUNDMENT OF VEHICLES for Violations of Fleeing or Attempting to Elude a Police Officer and Leaving the Scene of a Personal Injury or Property Damage Accident.
Following a brief clarification by Corporation Counsel Randy Ray answering Council Member Sandberg’s question regarding property damage, Council Member Nichting moved to adopt the Ordinance amending Chapter 20 of the Code of the City of Peoria relating to impoundment of vehicles for violations of fleeing or attempting to elude a Police Officer and leaving the scene of a personal injury of property damage accident; seconded by Council Member Van Auken.   

ORDINANCE NO. 15,906, amending Chapter 20, was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, 

Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;

Nays:
None.

27428                               CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                              MARCH 28, 2006

(06-168)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Economic Development Requesting Approval to RELEASE the REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) to be ISSUED JOINTLY with the PEORIA CIVIC CENTER AUTHORITY for the CONSTRUCTION of a FULL-SERVICE HOTEL on a SITE* To be Proposed by Those Participating in the RFP PROCESS, Other than the Site at the Corner of Fulton and Jefferson Streets. (Not just on a site adjacent to and South of the Civic Center).
*Clerk’s Note:  The title of this item was changed to reflect the intent of the motion.
Council Member Grayeb moved to release the request for proposal (RFP) to be issued jointly with the Peoria Civic Center Authority for the construction of a full-service hotel on a site adjacent to and South of the Civic Center; seconded by Council Member Nichting. 
Council Member Morris spoke in support of the motion, but he felt it was important to find all the opportunities that were available for the Civic Center project.  He said he felt it would be irresponsible not to seek the finest partner potential for this project.

Council Member Sandberg said he felt the choices for the location of a proposed hotel should not be limited to one site.  He said the Civic Center had several locations on their property for a hotel and he suggested that the Request for Proposal be left open for potential developers to be creative and the developer should suggest a location for all entities to consider.  He added he felt the choices should not be artificially limited at the beginning of the process.
Director of Economic Development Craig Hullinger said the RFP could be modified to leave the choice of locations for the potential developers to decide.  He said most of the consultants recommended that the proposed hotel should be physically connected, with an environmentally controlled connection, to the Civic Center.
Council Member Grayeb indicated he would accept the amendment to his motion.

Council Member Sandberg said he felt the criteria that the proposed hotel should be connected to the Civic Center was a critical component and should not be removed from the RFP.   
Council Member Grayeb said he agreed with Council Member Sandberg’s suggestion, with the exception of the site located next to City Hall on the corner of Fulton and Jefferson Streets.  He said the Council felt the corner of Fulton and Jefferson Streets would not be a good location for a hotel.

Council Member Manning agreed with the comments made by the other Council Members and he spoke in full support of the motion, but he expressed concern that these suggestions should have been made earlier in the process. 

Mayor Ardis suggested that the first sentence be removed from the site information and the requirement that the hotel would be physically connected would remain.  

Council Member Morris said the site next to City Hall on the corner of Fulton and Jefferson Streets would not be an acceptable site.  He requested that this be stipulated in the RFP.

Council Member Grayeb commended members of the Civic Center Authority, who were in attendance, for their expertise and dedication to the Civic Center and the expansion that was in the process of being constructed.  He recognized Chairperson Rebekkah Bourland, Members Dr. Peter Couri, and Mr. Dan Silverthorn, General Manager Debbie Ritschel, and Attorney Dave Stuckel.  
MARCH 28, 2006                        CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                                     27429

*Motion, as amended, to release the request for proposal (RFP) to be issued jointly with the Peoria Civic Center Authority for the construction of a full-service hotel on a site to be proposed by those participating in the RFP process, other than the site at the corner of Fulton and Jefferson Street, was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, 

Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;

Nays:
None.

(06-169)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Planning and Growth Management Requesting Adoption of the ORDINANCE ANNEXING Property Located in the NW 1/4 and SW 1/4 of SECTION 30 of MEDINA TOWNSHIP, and the NE 1/4, SE 1/4 and SW 1/4 of SECTION 25 and the N 1/2 of the NE 1/4 of Section 36 of RADNOR TOWNSHIP, Excepting the TRAILS EDGE SUBDIVISION and TRAILS EDGE CONDOMINIUMS.
Council Member Nichting moved to defer this item for one week until the April 4, 2006, Regular City Council Meeting; seconded by Council Member Turner.
Motion to defer this item until the April 4, 2006, Regular City Council Meeting was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;

Nays:
None.
(06-170)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Planning and Growth Management Requesting Adoption of ORDINANCE "A" or ORDINANCE "B" Amending APPENDIX B of the Code of the City of Peoria Relating to Zoning for Various Text Adjustments to ALLOW PLANT SALES WITHIN PARKING AREAS AS A TEMPORARY USE.
Council Member Van Auken moved to adopt Ordinance “B” amending Appendix B of the Code of the City of Peoria relating to zoning for various text adjustments to allow plant sales within parking areas as a temporary use; seconded by Council Member Sandberg.
In discussion with Council Member Sandberg, Director of Planning and Growth Management Pat Landes explained that the difference in the two proposed Ordinances related to parking requirements.  Council Member Sandberg said the adoption of proposed Ordinance “B” would keep the rules equal for all plant sale businesses.

Council Member Spears stated he brought this situation forward to see if there couldn’t be an equitable solution.  He related some of the issues surrounding the landscaping firms which were permanent.  He moved to grant Privilege of the Floor to anyone who wished to address this issue; seconded by Council Member Van Auken. 

Hearing no objections, Mayor Ardis granted Privilege of the Floor to anyone who wished to address this issue.

Mr. Horace G. Whitledge, owner of Whitledge Flowers for 35 years, urged the Council to adopt Ordinance “A” so there would be no requirement for parking.  He said his businesses were  temporary setups and he expressed concern regarding the extra expense involved in the overhead of providing parking.  
Discussion was held regarding the proposed Ordinances and the details of the parking requirements.  
27430                               CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                              MARCH 28, 2006

Motion to adopt ORDINANCE NO. 15,907 (Ordinance “B”) amending Appendix B of the Code of the City of Peoria relating to zoning for various text adjustments to allow plant sales within parking areas as a temporary use was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;

Nays:
None.
(06-171)
Communication from Council Member George Jacob, Council Member Patrick Nichting, and Council Member Barbara Van Auken Recommending Approval of OPTION #4 to TRANSITION the ELIMINATION OF LONGEVITY PAY for the MANAGEMENT, CONFIDENTIAL, AND NON-REPRESENTED EMPLOYEES GROUP as of MAY 31, 2006, and ROLL CURRENT LONGEVITY Into the BASE PAY with Incentive Pay Based Upon Merit provided in Future Years and Use this as a Model for Negotiations with Other Represented Groups.
Council Member Nichting thanked City Staff Management Members Pat Landes, Steve Van Winkle, Kent Tomblin, Steve Settingsgaard, Kristie Collier, Jim Scroggins, Pat Parsons, and Kimberly King, as well as Council Member Van Auken and Council Member Jacob for their commitment to this situation.  He said these discussions originated in the 2006 Budget Sessions when a committee was formed to discuss and make a recommendation regarding the issue of longevity for management personnel to the City Council.  He said several meetings had been held and there was open discussion by all participants.  He said he, Council Member Van Auken, and Council Member Jacob recommended the adoption of Option #4. 

Council Member Nichting moved to approve Option #4 to transition the elimination of longevity pay for the Management, Confidential, and Non-Represented Employees Group as of May 31, 2006, and roll current longevity into the base pay with incentive pay based upon merit provided in future years and use this as a model for negotiations with other represented groups; seconded by Council Member Jacob.
Council Member Grayeb expressed concern that a change was being proposed to a system that he felt had worked well in retaining employees with institutional knowledge.  He said he felt the proposed change would not produce cost savings as was proposed, but would actually cost the  City and taxpayers more in Staff turnover.  He said the compensation package for City employees had been studied and he felt any change to the longevity program was a mistake.  He said he also felt that merit pay systems could be abused and politicized. He said he would not support the motion.
Council Member Morris commended Council Member Manning for first raising this issue in December, 2005.  He said he felt the structure had to change even though the Council valued the management employees.  He said the idea of longevity pay must change.  He said City employees should be paid a competitive wage with benefits that the City could afford to pay.  He said he felt that Option #4 was a step in the right direction, and this was the first of many structural changes that needed to be made.
Council Member Sandberg said longevity was not really being eliminated because longevity would be rolled into the base pay. He stated the original intent of longevity served a purpose when City salaries were not competitive. He said the Slavin report stated longevity was an out-of-date concept and needed to be eliminated.  He stated there should be a fifth option to eliminate longevity as of a certain date.  He added he would not support Option #4.

MARCH 28, 2006                        CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                                     27431

Council Member Turner referred to other financial obligations that would be facing the City in the next few years, and he said some difficult decisions would have to be made.  He gave a brief history of the longevity program.  He said longevity was eliminated in 1986 and was reinstated in 1988 because of employee dissention, low morale, and the exceptional amount of employee turnover.  He said longevity was again eliminated in 1991 and in 1996, it was restated for the same reasons as in 1988.  He expressed concern that this decision again would cause turmoil among the 80 management people, and the Council would still have to deal with the longevity issue with the bargaining units.  He also expressed concern regarding compression and how it would affect promotions from within departments.  He added he was also concerned about the City’s financial future.

Council Member Gulley suggested eliminating longevity, but not until May 31, 2009.  He said this would give employees notice that longevity would be eliminated and each would have time to adjust and have a better understanding.  He said only 80 employees would be impacted while all other employees would still be receiving longevity.  He said the May 31, 2009, date would also coincide with negotiations of some of the labor union contracts.

Council Member Van Auken gave an overview of the meetings she attended with City Management Staff and she pointed out that in the December Budget Session there had been no support for totally eliminating longevity.  She pointed out that these measures being taken were not intended to indicate that City Management Employees were not valued or appreciated.  She explained that Option #4 was a compromise so that no one received a pay cut.  She said the original reason for longevity had long since been met and management employees’ salaries were now at market with other entities and the private sector.  
Council Member Manning said he felt the City’s employees were fairly compensated especially when healthcare benefits and pension benefits were included.  He said annual raises would be calculated on a higher base pay and this was just one of the items that needed to be addressed regarding long term benefit packages to keep the City’s fiscal house in order.  He said he appreciated the committee’s commitment and the recommendation that was brought forward.  He expressed concern that City Management Employees who participated in the discussions had deferred from making any recommendations to the Council.  He said he did not have a better option at this time, and he stated he would support the motion.

Council Member Nichting said it would take a number of years, but attrition would eventually solve the issue of longevity.  He said there were many other options, but Council Members were trying to be sensitive to the needs of the City’s Management Employees.

Mayor Ardis commended the City’s work force and he said the decision regarding longevity had not been easy for him or the Council.  He said these steps were being made so the City could survive the future and the changes that would come.  He said no disrespect was intended toward the City’s employees, and he hoped everyone could work together in the future.  He thanked those involved with the committee for their efforts toward making this recommendation.  
Motion to approve Option #4 to transition the elimination of longevity pay for the Management, Confidential, and Non-Represented Employees Group as of May 31, 2006, and roll current longevity into the base pay with Incentive pay based upon merit provided in future years and use this as a model for negotiations with other represented groups was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 8;

Nays:
Grayeb, Gulley, Sandberg - 3.

27432                               CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                              MARCH 28, 2006

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

(06-147)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Public Works Requesting to AWARD MULTIPLE CONTRACTS, in the Total Amount of $297,142.00, for INSTALLATION and REPLACEMENT of EMERGENCY GENERATORS at the MUNICIPAL SERVICES BUILDING, CENTRAL FIRE STATION, PAWS, and PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS and MAINTENANCE CENTER.

Council Member Nichting moved to defer this item for one week until the April 4, 2006, Regular City Council Meeting; seconded by Council Member Morris.

Motion to defer this item for one week until the April 4, 2006, Regular City Council Meeting was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 11;

Nays:
None.
ANNOUNCEMENT Regarding TIME CHANGE for the APRIL 8, 2006, HOUSING AND PROPERTY MAINTENANCE COMMISSION MEETING to 2:00 P.M. - 4:00 P.M. to be Held in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS.
Council Member Manning announced the Housing and Property Maintenance Commission previously scheduled a public meeting to discuss landlord and rental registration issues on April 8, 2006, from 10:00 A.M. until 12:00 noon.  He said there was a conflict and the meeting time was changed to be held on April 8, 2006, from 2:00 P.M. until 4:00 P.M. at City Hall in the Council Chambers.  He also wanted citizens to know there was no current plan and these issues would be discussed at the meeting on April 8th. 

NEW BUSINESS
ANNOUNCEMENT Regarding DEVELOPER AND POTENTIAL TENANT MEETING Regarding the EDGEWATER BUILDING on MARCH 31, 2006.
Council Member Gulley urged potential tenants who were interested in riverfront living to attend a meeting regarding the development of the Edgewater Building that would be held Friday, March 31, 2006, at 3:30 P.M. at the Edgewater Building for a walk through tour.  He said developers would be present to propose some ideas and he urged everyone to attend.
COMMENTS Regarding the PROGRESS of the EFFORTS of the AD HOC COMMISSION TO REVIEW COMMISSIONS

Council Member Morris referred to the Ad Hoc Commission to review Commissions and he discussed the number of meetings that had been held.  He said this had turned into a ten month process and had been the most comprehensive review of commissions in recent memory.  He encouraged the Council to interface with the Commission as final recommendations were being created.  He said these recommendations had been deliberated for the efficiencies of the City and the effectiveness of the Commission.  He said in approximately one month, there would be some recommendations coming to the Council.

Council Member Van Auken said the final meeting should be held on April 7, 2006, in the Council Chambers at 3:30 P.M.  She said a report would be provided to the City Council for their review prior to the formal recommendations being presented at a Council Meeting. 
MARCH 28, 2006                        CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                                     27433

Mayor Ardis commended the efforts of Council Member Van Auken, Council Member Morris, and Council Member Sandberg, the City Clerk’s Staff, Director of Planning and Growth Management Pat Landes, and Senior Administrative Assistant to the Mayor Kristie Collier who had all contributed many hours to finalizing the recommendations.

REPORT Regarding DONATIONS MADE to ST. JUDE CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL in the FRIENDLY CHALLENGE with the MAYOR OF MEMPHIS

Mayor Ardis referred to the friendly challenge issued to the Mayor of Memphis to raise money for the St. Jude’s Children’s Hospital, and he reported that over $7,000.00 had been raised by the citizens of Peoria. He said money had been received from all over the country, and he encouraged everyone to get their donations in by Friday, March 31, 2006.  He thanked everyone who participated in this worthy cause.  

COMMENTS Regarding ARTICLE in the ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL REVIEW Written by DIRECTOR OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CRAIG HULLINGER
Mayor Ardis commended Director of Economic Development Craig Hullinger and Development Specialist Chris Setti for the outstanding article in the Illinois Municipal Review entitled “Just Outside Chicago, There is a Place Called Illinois.”  He requested that the article be placed on the City’s website for citizens to review.

CITIZEN REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL

(06-172)
Request for CITIZENS to ADDRESS the CITY COUNCIL Regarding VARIOUS ISSUES.

Hearing no objections, Mayor Ardis granted Privilege of the Floor to those citizens wishing to 

address the City Council.

Ms. Mary Moore, 1211 E. Nebraska, spoke in opposition to the hazardous waste that was being dumped at the City/County Landfill and the impact toxic waste had on the water supply. She spoke against the proposed expansion and she expressed concern about future water quality for the area.

Council Member Grayeb said the Peoria County Commission would be holding a meeting at the Itoo Hall on Farmington Road on Monday, April 3, 2006, to hear further comments from the public and to provide information on Staff reports regarding the proposed expansion of the landfill.  He said the County Board would be taking a final vote in May, 2006.  

Mr. Paul Sherwood commended Council Members for the work they performed.

Mr. General Parker, 1205 W. Third Street, expressed  concern regarding the elimination of longevity for City Management Employees.  He also expressed concern regarding the City’s proposed Ordinance that would require the impoundment of vehicles if noise from music, etc. was a problem.

Rev. A. J. Guyton, 1203 W. Third Street, expressed concern regarding the proposed Ordinance relating to loud music and the impoundment of vehicles.  He invited Council Members to the Baptist Ministers Alliance meeting on Saturday at 1418 S. Faraday so members could obtain a better understanding of the proposed Ordinance so they could assist with resolving some issues before those issues became problems.

27434                               CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                              MARCH 28, 2006

EXECUTIVE SESSION
(06-173)
Requesting Approval of a Motion for the City Council to go into EXECUTIVE SESSION to Discuss 2(c)(5)  The purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body.

Council Member Manning moved for the City Council to go into an Executive Session to discuss 2(c)(5)  The purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body; seconded by Council Member Turner. 

Approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Grayeb, Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis - 11;

Nays:
None.

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Jacob moved to adjourn the Regular City Council Meeting; seconded by Council Member Spears.

Approved by viva voce vote.

The Council Meeting adjourned at 9:45 P.M.  

________________________             

Mary L. Haynes, MMC, City Clerk








City of Peoria, Illinois

bb
